
 

 
 

 

 Shropshire Council 
Legal and Democratic Services 

Shirehall 
Abbey Foregate 

Shrewsbury 
SY2 6ND 

   

Date:    8 May 2024 
 

Committee:  
Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: Thursday, 16 May 2024 
Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Shrewsbury Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, 
Shropshire, SY2 6ND 

 

You are requested to attend the above meeting. The Agenda is attached 
 

There will be some access to the meeting room for members of the press and public, but 
this will be limited. If you wish to attend the meeting please email 
democracy@shropshire.gov.uk to check that a seat will be available for you.  

 
Please click here to view the livestream of the meeting on the date and time stated on the 

agenda 
 
The recording of the event will also be made available shortly after the meeting on the 

Shropshire Council Youtube Channel Here 
 

Tim Collard 
Assistant Director - Legal and Governance  
 
Members of Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Cllr Geoff Elner 

Cllr Kate Halliday 
Cllr Heather Kidd 
Lynn Cawley (co-optee) 

David Sandbach (co-optee) 
 

 

Cllr Ollie Vickers (Co-Chair)  

Cllr Nigel Dugmore 
Cllr Derek White 
Simon Fogell (co-optee) 

Hilary Knight (co-optee) 
Dag Saunders (co-optee) 

Officer Contacts: 
 

Committee Officer: Amanda Holyoak  Shropshire Council,  

     01743 257714 amanda.holyoak@shropshire.gov.uk 

 
Sophie Foster - Overview and Scrutiny Officer  Paige Starkey - Senior Democracy Officer 
Shropshire Council     Telford & Wrekin Council 

Tel:   01743 257714    Tel: 01952 380110 

Email:   Sophie.foster@shropshire.gov.uk  Email:  paige.starkey@shropshire.gov.uk  

Public Document Pack

mailto:democracy@shropshire.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/featured
https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/videos
mailto:amanda.holyoak@shropshire.gov.uk
mailto:Sophie.foster@shropshire.gov.uk
mailto:paige.starkey@shropshire.gov.uk


AGENDA 
 

 
1  Apologies for Absence  

 
 

2  Declarations of Interest  

 

 
3  Minutes of Meeting held on 8 April 2024 (Pages 1 - 6) 

 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 8 April 2024, attached. 
 

 
4  Update on the Joint Forward Plan (Pages 7 - 20) 

 

To receive an update on the Joint Forward Plan for Shropshire Telford and 
Wrekin from: 

 
Claire Parker, Director of Partnerships and Place and Julie Davies, Director of 
Planning and Performance - NHS Shropshire Telford and Wrekin; and Nigel 

Lee, Director of Strategy and Partnerships - Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital 
Trust.   

 
A presentation is attached. 
 

 
5  Co-Chairs Update  

 
 

6  Date of next meeting  

 
Proposed date of next meeting is Tuesday 10 September 2024 at 2.00 pm 

 
 



 

 

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
Minutes of a meeting of the Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

held on Monday 8 April 2024 at 11.00 am in Council Chamber, Third 

Floor, Southwater One, Telford, TF3 4JG 
 

 

Present:            Councillors G Elner (Co-Chair), O Vickers (Co-Chair),  

                                 K Halliday, H Kidd and D R W White.  

           Co-optees: H Knight  
 
In Attendance:  K Evans (Deputy Chief Operating Officer, Shrewsbury  

                                and Telford Hospital NHS Trust), S Foster (Scrutiny and  
                                Overview Officer, Shropshire Council), L Gordon      

                                (Democracy Officer (Scrutiny)), B Lodge (Director UEC,  
                                Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin Integrated Care System)  
                                and P Starkey (Senior Democracy Officer (Scrutiny)) 

 
Apologies:             Councillor N A Dugmore 

                                Co-optees: D Saunders, S Fogell and L Cawley 
 
JHOSC1 Declarations of Interest 

 
None. 

 
JHOSC2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

 
RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 27 February 2024 
be confirmed and signed by the Chair. 

 
JHOSC3 Urgent & Emergency Care and Winter Planning Update 

 

The Committee received an update from the Director of Delivery & 
Transformation, Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin Integrated Care System (ICS) 

on Urgent & Emergency Care (UEC) and Winter Planning preparedness at its 
last meeting held on 27 February 2024. In light of representatives who were 
unable to attend the meeting, the Committee requested for an additional 

meeting of the JHOSC to be arranged to continue the discussions on UEC. 
 

Following brief introductions, the Committee posed the following questions to 
the Director of UEC, Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin Integrated Care System 

(ICS) and the Deputy Chief Operating Officer, Shrewsbury and Telford 
Hospital NHS Trust (SaTH) who attended the meeting:- 

 
There continues to be large numbers of ambulances waiting outside A&E 
departments at hospitals for up to 8hrs at a time. When will residents begin to 

see improvements in ambulance handover times? 
 

The Director of UEC, Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin ICS advised the 
Committee that hospitals had recently signed up to the Minimum Care 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

 

Standards (MCS) for patients as provided by NHS England. Escalation 
processes to offload ambulances quickly had also been implemented to 

evidence full commitment to MCS.  
 

Could a breakdown of the improvement plan and proposed timescales be 
provided to the committee? 
 

The Committee were advised that the improvement plan was underway and 
was projected to see 6 new areas. Considerations had been made with 

regards to the Hospital Transformation Programme to avoid setting up 
services that would not be aligned. Subject to sign off from NHS England, a 
copy of the improvement plan would be circulated to the Committee at a later 

date.  
 

Historically, hospitals have not been able to engage with GP practices to 
ensure patients are directed via the most appropriate pathway. How did 
hospitals continue to work with GP practices to ensure patients are referred to 

the most appropriate care pathway considering access for patients l iving in 
rural areas of Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin?  
 

The Committee were informed that the monthly Clinical Advisory Group had 

been well attended and GP practices had been involved in designing the 
winter plan. The Director of UEC, Shropshire Telford and Wrekin ICS informed 

Members that they had been a regular attendee of the GP Board to discuss 
UEC.  
 

Following the closure of Bishop’s Castle Community Hospital, did the 
impending reopening of the impatient ward alleviate bed pressures at Royal 

Shrewsbury Hospital?  
 
The Director of UEC, Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin ICS informed the 

Committee that an update on the status of Bishop’s Castle Community 
Hospital would be provided at a later date.  

 
What services were available at the Princess Royal Hospital and how were 
services communicated publicly? 
 

The Committee were advised that residents could access information relating 
to services available at both Hospitals online, by calling 111 or speaking to 

their local GP practice who could direct them to the most suitable service. 
Patients had been encouraged to use 111 online or call 111 if they require 
urgent care but do not need to attend A&E.  

 
How will one operational A&E in Royal Shrewsbury Hospital improve patient 

waiting and discharge times? 
 
The Deputy Chief Operating Officer, Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS 

Trust (SaTH) informed Members that the Emergency Department at the Royal 
Shrewsbury Hospital had been redesigned to manage the expected increase 

Page 2



 

 

in level of demand, however urgent care services would be available to 
patients at the Princess Royal Hospital located in Telford.  

 
In 2017/18, the Princess Royal Hospital was ranked by the BBC as 3 rd worst 

hospital for A&E services and patients continued to receive a poor service. 
Why did SaTH continue to have higher patient death rates? 
 

The Director of UEC, Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin ICS recognised the 
morale injury to staff as a result of poor patient experience and informed 

Members that hospitals were continuing to use data produced through the 
Getting It Right First Time (GIRFT) programme to establish the number of 
avoidable deaths as a result of overcrowding in A&E departments.  

 
Was GIRFT data publicly available and if so, how was it accessible? 

 
The Committee were informed that GIRFT data was publicly available and the 
Director of UEC, Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin ICS confirmed that figures 

could be provided directly to the Committee at future meetings.  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 February 2024 referred to 62 beds 
becoming available by the end of December 2023. Can the Deputy Chief 
Operating Officer confirm if the correct total of beds was 46 with 20 beds at 

the Princess Royal Hospital and 26 beds at Royal Shrewsbury Hospital? 
 

The Deputy Chief Operating Officer, Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS 
Trust (SaTH) confirmed that following the conversion of the Dialysis Ward at 
Princess Royal Hospital into a Rehab and Recovery Ward, a total of 20 beds 

would be available at the Princess Royal Hospital with a complete total of 46 
beds across the Trust.  

 
 
What was the total number of excess deaths associated with A&E services? 

 
The Deputy Chief Operating Officer, Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS 

Trust (SaTH) suggested that there were approximately 70 excess deaths for 
one site in a year.  
 

Historically there have been delays in beds becoming available due to 
pressures in social care. Have there been improvements to bed capacities? 
 

The Committee were informed that capacity levels had lowered considerably 

due to a reduction in patients waiting to be discharged with No Criteria to 
Reside (NCTR). Average lengths of stays were at a total of 6 days at the start 

of 2024 which had since reduced to an average of 1.9 days in exceptional 
cases. The Committee also heard that there had been improvements in 
patients that had stayed over 14 – 21 days and a key area of focus for 

hospitals was to begin to discharge earlier in the day.  
 

Page 3



 

 

There was previously a high turnover of staff including leadership positions. Is 
the current staff culture another contributing factor towards issues within 

hospitals? 
 

The Deputy Chief Operating Officer, Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS 
Trust (SaTH) advised Members that one of the areas in the EC Transform 
Programme includes a specific stream around culture and ensuring staff feel 

supported and are able to escalate issues which could be extended into other 
areas such as the Medicine Division. Members also heard that the Trust had 

been successful in recruitment and will continue to collaboratively work with 
staff to ensure there is  visible leadership support.  
 

Were staff and patients no longer required to wear PPE when in A&E or 
hospital? 

 
The Committee were advised that infection control processes were in place at 
both hospital sites and routine reviews are undertaken to determine if PPE 

should be worn by hospital staff and patients.  
 

The Committee has previously requested excess death data from the West 
Midlands Ambulance Service. Was this data now available?  
 

The Director of UEC, Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin ICS advised that the ICS 

have continued to engage with West Midlands Ambulance Service (WMAS) 
with regards to transparency of data publicly available.  
 

What was the current bed gap in hospitals? 
 

The Committee were informed that beds were monitored on a daily and hourly 

basis and there had been a current gap of 80 beds at the time of the meeting.  
 
What impact did the additional 6 beds at the Royal Shrewsbury Hospital have 

on the bed gap since being commission in March 2024 and what impact would 
the two new modular wards have when available?  

 
The Deputy Chief Operating Officer, Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS 
Trust (SaTH) informed Members that the 46 beds that had been 

commissioned as part of the new modular wards will move to a new building 
once available.  

 
As two new wards will be created as part of the Hospital Transformation 
Programme, what will happen to the ward currently in use?  

 
The Deputy Chief Operating Officer, Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS 

Trust (SaTH) confirmed that the ward will continue to be used following the 
work that is to be undertaken and will be regularly reviewed in terms of bed 
space.  

 
 

 

Page 4



 

 

Were additional beds provided for patients who required frailty care? 
 

The Deputy Chief Operating Officer, Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS 
Trust (SaTH) advised that additional beds had not be provided however 

services within both hospitals had been realigned to create a frailty unit to 
ensure patients who had been identified as frail received the correct support 
and were assessed to understand if admission to hospital was required.  

 
How would a patient who requires frailty care be admitted into the system? 
 

The Director of UEC, Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin ICS informed Members 

that admission would be dependent on initial assessment of care required. If 
the patient called 999 they would be admitted via the Hospital’s Emergency 

Department and attended to by the Frailty Team with care and treatment 
administered under the Frailty Consultant following admission to the ward. 
Patients can also be referred to the relevant pathway by the appropriate care 

coordination centres.  
 

National statistics show that 64% of patients who visit A&E are treated by the 
Emergency Departments with only 2,000 – 4,000 patients attending minor 
injury or urgent care centres. 

 
The Director of UEC, Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin ICS confirmed that 

patients are screened by a trained Nurse upon arrival to the Emergency 
Department (ED) to determine if the patient can be referred to an Urgent 
Treatment Centre or needs to be treated by ED. Members heard that some of 

the data available does not reflect opening or closing times of ED with many 
patients arriving during the evening to seek urgent treatment.  

 
Did the West Midlands Ambulance Service provide advanced paramedics on 
ambulances and were they able to redirect patients to primary care pathways?  
 

The Committee were informed that there had been little consistency in 
providing advanced paramedics as part of the ambulance service, however, 

advanced paramedics are available if requested by the crew and have 
previously provided triage for category 2 calls.  
 

Was there a recruitment freeze within Hospitals and how many staff were 
employed currently? 

 
The Committee heard that a recruitment freeze had been put in place at the 
Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital Trust (SaTH) but was currently in its final 

stage. The Deputy Chief Operating Officer, Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital 
NHS Trust (SaTH) confirmed that SaTH were in a position to review 

recruitment with all vacancies going through a triple lock process initiated by 
NHS England and would be able to provide staffing numbers outside of the 
meeting.  

 
 

Page 5



 

 

At a Board Meeting, two areas of concern were flagged for Urgent & 
Emergency Care which saw the Winter Plan identify a bed deficit of 21 with 

mitigations in place to reduce impact. When was it assumed that the Winter 
Plan was not working? 

 
The Director of UEC, Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin ICS advised that some 
elements of the Winter Plan had been a success however other areas showed 

no evidence of impact. The Winter Plan had been reviewed and showed 
improvement when compared to previous years. Members also heard that 

Virtual Wards had an occupancy of 72-76% with 118 patients receiving 
treatment at the time of the meeting and that the Outpatient Parenteral 
Antimicrobial Therapy (OPAT) service launched in January has improved 

capacity in hospitals, enabling patients to finish antibiotic causes at home.  
 

Can GP practices admit patients to Virtual Wards? 
 
The Director of UEC, Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin ICS confirmed that GPs 

and paramedics were able to refer patients to Virtual Wards.  
 

What proportion of patients are being ‘stepped up’ and ‘stepped down’ from 
Hospital? 
 

The Director of UEC, Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin ICS suggested that 60% 
of patients had stepped up and 40% of patients had stepped down and a 

further breakdown of data could be provided to the Committee following the 
meeting.  
 
JHOSC4 Co-Chair's Update 

 

The Chair informed the Committee that the next informal meeting of the Joint 
HOSC would take place on Monday 22 April 2024 via Microsoft Teams with 
representatives from the West Midlands Ambulance Service in attendance.  

 
The meeting ended at 12.58 pm 

 
Chairman:   
 

Date: 
 

Thursday 16 May 2024 

 

Page 6



Joint Forward Plan Update to HOSC

May 2024

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



2

Contents

Topic Page

JFP updates and refresh 3

Person Centred Care 6

Local care 7

Hospital Transformation Programme 11

Enablers 12

P
age 8



3

Joint Forward Plan update and refresh

• Joint Forward Plan is a rolling 5-year system plan created to deliver the Integrated strategy set out by the 
Integrated Care Partnership (ICP)

• 2024/25 update will be presented to the HWWB’s in May and June 2024 to include achievements, 
changes, risks and ambitions for year 5

• The JFP still focusses on these areas:
• Person Centred care 
• Local care programme-Integrated neighbourhood approach
• Hospital Transformation
• Enablers- Finance, digital, workforce and estates

P
age 9



4

One Shropshire

One Shropshire supports the delivery of the Shropshire Plan , the STW Joint Forward Plan and the Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy. It delivers the work through the Shropshire Integrated Place Partnership (SHIPP) by working 
collaboratively and integrating approaches to improve service delivery and population health. The recently agreed 
Prevention Framework provides more context and detail for how we will deliver our strategic plans. The Framework 
includes the following key priority areas:

 Priority 1: Access and One Shropshire
Ensuring a well understood front door with access to information and advice, that focusses on self-care.

 Priority 2: Integration and One Shropshire
Enable communities and the voluntary and community sector to take more of central role in the development and 
delivery of prevention programmes, ensuring all age groups are at the centre of the implementation of the framework.

 Priority 3: Person Centred Care
Embed Person Centred Care and approach across all organisations and partners.

 Priority 4: Communities
Bolster the voluntary and community sector to work with partners across the system to support those in need.

P
age 10

https://myplan.shropshire.gov.uk/
https://www.shropshiretelfordandwrekin.ics.nhs.uk/integrated-care-strategy-and-joint-forward-plan/
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/public-health/health-and-wellbeing-board/joint-health-and-wellbeing-strategy/
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/public-health/health-and-wellbeing-board/joint-health-and-wellbeing-strategy/
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/media/27641/prevention-matters-shropshires-prevention-framework.pdf


5

Telford and Wrekin

• Proactive Care pilot in PCN- 
evaluating impact

• Defining the neighbourhood 
approach 

• Deliverty of the HWB strategy 
and integrated care strategy 
through TWIPP

• Community and family hubs 
developing with Women’s 
Health hubs aligning

P
age 11



6

Person Centred care

• Person Centred Care:
• Integrated Neighbourhood work commenced across STW, projects in Highley, Oswestry, Telford 

and South Shropshire with health, care and Voluntary and Community Sector
• Women’s Health Hubs – with focus on perinatal care, sexual health and menopause
• Building on the development of children’s and family hubs to access a range of services where 

people live
• Multidisciplinary team development at Bishops Castle Hospital- services to support people in 

their own community to access health and care- expanding the drop-in service- next steps to 
look at outpatient services

• Consideration in service design to ensure reduction in travel for people in rural communities 
where possible

• Healthy weight strategies for Telford and Wrekin and Shropshire approved at respective Health 
and Wellbeing Boards

• Population Health Management board and Health Inequalities board commenced utilising 
JSNA(Joint Strategic Needs Assessment) and other available data to inform the INT work and 
SHIPP/TWIPP strategies

• PCN (Primary Care Networks) development with innovative working with other partners and 
stakeholders

• Proactive care model in place across STW- impact evaluation suppression of 32 acute beds

P
age 12



7

Local Care

• Virtual ward and sub acute wards are 
business as usual (presented to HOSC in 
April 24)

• Local care is not ALL community and 
primary care but aspects that can 
integrate

• Framework of VCSE involvement being 
developed around sustainability and 
support

• Focus on prevention and managing Long 
term conditions

• Focus on communities
• Development of Community hubs 

(physical and virtual)
• Neighbourhood approach nomenclature 

developing

P
age 13



8

A visual concept of our neighbourhood approach

‘Teams of teams’ 
from across all parts 
of the community 
make up our 
neighbourhood and 
work together to make 
it a great place to live, 
work and learn.

P
age 14



Spokes delivering 
Early Help Parenting 
support, Drop-ins & 
other community 
offer 

Spokes delivering 
activities for 
CYP& other 
community offer 

Spokes delivering 
activities for 
Adults & other 
community offer 

Different types of hub models – working together to make it as easy as 
possible  for people to be happy, healthy and connected in their 
communities

Other partners including 
Police, Fire, Business, DWP

All Age, Early Help, Social 
Care, Housing, 

Shropshire Local, 
appointments and 
Integration Offer

NHS, Women’s Health 
Hub, PCNs, Memory 
Teams, Public Health 

Nursing, MDTs
Voluntary and 

Community Sector 
Offer (befriending, 

peer support, 
groups, food, falls)

All Age – 
Open Access

P
age 15



10

Key components of the Proactive Care model

 Case Identification: using data driven approaches to identify eligible individuals and clinical validation of their eligibility

 Holistic Assessment: identifying the health, social and self-care needs of an individual

 Personalised support and care planning: empowering and enabling individuals to take an active role in making decisions 
about their care

 Multidisciplinary working: development of MDTs that review, recommend and deliver care (includes ASC & GP’s, VCSE)

 Co-ordinated care: working with individuals to support them to understand recommendations and co-ordinate their care 
through a single point of contact

 Interventions and support: recommend clinical and/or non-clinical interventions that should be tailored to the individual’s 
needs and preferences

P
age 16



11

Hospital Transformation Programme

• Outline business case for HTP approved December 2023
• Full business case submitted to DHSC in April 2024- awaiting approval
• Ongoing work between SATH (HTP) and STW ICB with Powys Teaching Health Board on planned 

developments in Newtown.  NB – aligns with Shropshire’s support for the ‘Marches Forward 
Partnership’ work (work between Shropshire, Powys, Hereford & Worcester and Monmouthshire Local 
Authorities)

• ‘Big conversation’ outputs incorporated into JFP refresh

P
age 17



12

Enablers

• Estates strategy for NHS, including primary care, commenced
• ICS Clinical strategy – improved cancer diagnosis, progress with MSK service, diabetes and mental 

health
• ICS Digital strategy actions commenced- Sath Electronic patient record upgrade completed
• Workforce strategy developed, aligned to NHS long-term Workforce plan commenced- workforce 

challenges improving in some areas

P
age 18



13

Next…

• First year of Joint Forward Plan 2023/24- updated plan to HWBB for 2024/25 (Year 2)
• Jointly developed with all system partners
• Jointly monitored and developed (e.g. working with Integrated Place Partnership Committees and Health 

& Wellbeing Boards as well as NHS ICB committees)
• Some early positive signs of progress but plenty to do – together
• Vital alignment to Population health and inequalities 

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Meeting held on 8 April 2024
	4 Update on the Joint Forward Plan

